
  

  
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, August 8, 2016 

5:30 p.m. 
 
 

I. Moment of Silence 
 

II. Pledge of Allegiance  
  
 III.     Approval of the Minutes of the July 25, 2016, City Council Meeting 
 
 IV.       Approval of Agenda of the August 8, 2016 City Council Meeting 

 
 V.        Public Comment 

 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.         Presentation of Proclamation for National Health Center Week 
               Presenter:  Mayor Junie White 
 
VII. Public Hearings 
 
 A. Ordinance to Amend the Entire Text of Section 515, Downtown Code by  
  Modifying Signage Standards, the Addition of a Zoning Category, DT-3:  
  Suburban Zone, Which is Primarily Residential, Amending Subsection 515.4.3 
  “Kennedy Street Parking Overlay” to Expand and Apply as a “Sideyard Parking 
  Overlay”, Addition of Illustrative Materials, and a Regulation Plan Which  
  Outlines the Areas for Which the Form Based Code Applies, of the Zoning  
  Ordinance of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina; and Providing for  
  Severability and an Effective Date (First Reading) 
  Presenter:  Natalia Rosario, Planning Staff 
 
 B. Ordinance Accepting the Proposed Addition to the Design Guidelines for The 
  Beaumont Village Local Historic District and The Hampton Heights Local  
  Historic District to Provide Guidelines for the Consideration of Solar Panels in 
  Historic Districts (First Reading) 
  Presenter:  Natalia Rosario, Planning Staff 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
                                          SOUTH CAROLINA 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 
Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a 
Public Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 
 
 
 
 



  

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 C. Ordinance to Amend the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina Zoning Ordinance 
  and Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element, by Amending Section 206, Changes 
  to District Boundaries of the Northside Neighborhood, Located Between North 
  Church Street and Continuing West Until the Railroad Tracks, and Extending 
  Until the Northern City Limit Line that are Currently Zoned B-3; B-1; R-6; R-8; 
  LOD & I-1, with Land Use Designations of General Business District,   
  Neighborhood Shopping District; General Residential District; Limited Office 
  District and Light Industrial District to Zones DT-5; DT-4; and DT-3, with Land 
  Use Designations of Urban Center District; General Urban District; and  
  Suburban Zone; and Providing for Severability and an Effective Date (First  
  Reading) 
 
VIII. Resolution 
 
 A.   Approving Donation of 2.3+  Acre Tract on Pine Street  
  (Tax Map Parcel #7-17-01-036.00) 
  Presenter:  Mitch Kennedy, Community Services Director 
 
 IX. Consent Agenda 
 
 A. Authorizing the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, To Execute and Deliver an 
  Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, 2016, in an Amount Not Exceeding  
  $2,000,000 Between the City and the Lessor Thereof to Defray the Cost of  
  Acquiring Certain Equipment; and Other Matters Relating Thereto (Second 
  Reading) 
  Presenter:  Dennis Locke, Finance Director 
 
 B. Approving the Conveyance of Two Permanent Encroachment Easements  
  Necessary to Facilitate the Construction of a Mixed Use Building at the Northeast 
  Corner of the Daniel Morgan Avenue and West Main Street Intersection (Second 
  Reading) 
  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
 
 X.       Other Business 
 
 A. Replacement of Floor Coverings – Fire Station 1 (City Hall) 
   Presenter:  Tony McAbee, Building Maintenance Manager 
 
 B. Boards and Commissions – Zoning Appeals Board and Public Safety Committee 
  Presenter:  Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 
           
XI.          City Council Updates 
 
 

City Council Agenda 
Page Two – August 8, 2016 



  

* Non-Agenda Items 
  City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter   
  pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel  
  matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item  
  considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City  
  Council. The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the  
  designated time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 
 
 *Agenda Items 
  City Code Sec. 2-56. Addressing Council, Comments or Remarks to Council on Agenda Items Not Requiring Public Hearing. On    
  agenda items not requiring a Public Hearing, please provide to the City Clerk prior to the opening of the meeting, your desire to  
  speak on an agenda item. Remarks shall be limited to five (5) minutes and total remarks on any agenda item shall not exceed  
  twenty (20) minutes. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

XII.        Executive Session Pursuant to Section 30-4-70 (a) (5) of the South Carolina Code                
               to Discuss Matters Relating to Encouraging the Location of A Business in the City    
 
              Council may take action on matters discussed in Executive Session after exiting              
              Executive Session. 
 
 
XIII.      Adjournment   
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda 
Page Three – August 8, 2016 



  
 

          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III.  



1 
 

  
City Council Meeting  

City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, July 25, 2016 

5:30 p.m. 
 

City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, Mayor 
pro tem Sterling Anderson, Councilmembers Jan Scalisi, Jerome Rice, Erica Brown, Laura 
Stille and Rosalyn Henderson Myers. City Manager Ed Memmott and City Attorney Cathy 
McCabe were also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours 
in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. All City Council meetings are 
recorded for a complete transcript. 
 
I. Moment of Silence - observed 

 
II. Pledge of Allegiance - recited  

  
 III.     Approval of the Minutes of the July 11, 2016, City Council Meeting – 
  Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the minutes as received.        
  Councilmember Henderson Myers seconded the motion, which carried unanimously                           
  7 to 0. 
 
 IV.       Approval of Agenda of the July 25, 2016 City Council Meeting –  
  Councilmember Henderson Myers made a motion to approve the agenda as     
   received. Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously   
   7 to 0. 

 
 V.        Public Comment 

 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 W. Thomas Maynard, 147 Mills Avenue, expressed his concerns regarding cut    
 through traffic and excessive speeds in the Converse Heights neighborhood. 
 

VI. Ordinance 
 
 A. Authorizing the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, To Execute and  
  Deliver an Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, 2016, in an Amount Not  
  Exceeding $2,000,000 Between the City and the Lessor Thereof to Defray the  
  Cost of Acquiring Certain Equipment; and Other Matters Relating Thereto  
  (First Reading) 
  Presenter:  Dennis Locke, Finance Director 
  Mr. Locke presented the item to Council as follows: 
  “As part of our ongoing efforts to equip staff with the resources they need at the  
  lowest possible cost over the long term, the City is committed to maintaining an  



2 
 

  annual equipment replacement schedule. Funds are appropriated through the  
  annual budget into the equipment replacement fund from which these purchases  
  and then made throughout the year. 
 
  Due in part to very low interest rates in recent years, staff had determined that the  
  City could strengthen its financial position by bundling and leasing the major  
  purchases within a master lease. This mechanism spreads the cost of these   
  purchases over several years. The proposed action is to authorize this year’s lease  
  program. 
 
  ACTION REQUESTED: Staff is recommending the replacement of 12 Police  
  Vehicles, 2 Vehicles Fire Department,(including Pumper Truck, 5 vehicles and 5  
  various pieces of equipment for Public Services, 1 Vehicle Parks & Recreation, 1  
  Vehicle Information Technology, 1 Vehicle Construction Management, 1 Vehicle 
  Building Maintenance. 
 
  It is staff’s recommendation that we use a capital lease to finance these purchases. 
  If approved, we would accept bids from various financial institutions. The source  
  of repayment would be the Equipment Replacement Fund. 
 
  BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA: The total will not exceed $2,000,000 inclusive 
  of closing costs. This amount may be reduced pending final review of acquisition  
  specifications.” 
  Councilmember Stille made a motion to approve the ordinance request on first  
  reading. Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 
  7 to 0. 
 
 B. Approving the Conveyance of Two Permanent Encroachment Easements  
  Necessary to Facilitate the Construction of a Mixed Use Building at the  
  Northeast Corner of the Daniel Morgan Avenue and West Main Street  
  Intersection (First Reading) 
  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
  Mr. Memmott presented the item to Council as follows: 
  “Staff has determined that the mixed use development that will be located on the  
  northwest corner of the West Main and Daniel Morgan Avenue will benefit from  
  the granting to two permanent encroachment easements.  One permanent   
  easement, approximately 6’in width, along the western dimension (Daniel   
  Morgan Avenue side) of the development parcel would be granted.  A second  
  permanent easement, approximately 2’ in width, (West Main Street side) would  
  be also be granted.  The easements will allow the buildings to have certain  
  architectural features that will enhance the project.    
 
  ACTION REQUESTED: First reading approval of an Ordinance authorizing  
  the granting of two permanent encroachment easements.” 



3 
 

  Mayor pro tem Anderson made a motion to approve the ordinance request on  
  first reading. Councilmember Stille seconded the motion, which carried   
  unanimously 7 to 0.   
 
VII.       Consent Agenda  
              A. Ordinance to Amend the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina Zoning  
  Ordinance, by amending Section 206, Changes to District Boundaries,  
  Specifically Parcel #6-21-13-156.06, Located on “0” Camelot That is   
  Approximately 8.64 acre Vacant Piece of Property Located at the   
  Intersection of Camelot Drive and Camelot Court, Which is Currently Zoned 
  LOD, with a Land Use Designation of Limited Office District to Zone   
  LOD/PDD, with a Land Use Designation of Limited Office District/Planned  
  Development District in Order for the Agent/Developer to Purchase and to  
  Build to Purchase and to Build Camelot Townes, which proposes 72   
  townhomes. Jay Beeson, Mark III Properties, Agent/Developer, on Behalf of  
  Joseph F. and David Sullivan, Owners. Note; The purchase and development 
  of this property are contingent upon the request being approved. (Second  
  Reading)  
  Presenter:  Natalia Rosario, Planner III  
  Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the consent agenda on   
  second reading. Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried  
  unanimously 7 to 0. 
 

VIII.      Other Business 
 
 A. Approval of Highland Community Memorandum of Understanding 
  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 
 Mr. Livingstone presented the item to Council as follows: 
  “The Highland Working Group has been meeting to discuss a potential Master  
  Plan for the redevelopment of the Highland Community.  Meeting regularly since  
  December of 2015, the group has discussed potential opportunities and challenges 
  that could affect the community. Members of the group include representation  
  from the City of Spartanburg, Highland Neighborhood Association, Spartanburg  
  School District 7, the Spartanburg Housing Authority, the Bethlehem Center,  
  Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church, and the Highland Community   
  Development Corporation. 
 
  The memorandum of understanding outlines the roles and responsibilities of each  
  partner. The partners included in the memorandum are early participants the City  
  identified as key to a successful redevelopment of the community. Additional  
  partners may be added to the meetings and discussions as the planning process  
  progresses. There is no financial commitment included in the memorandum of  
  understanding. 
 
  ACTION REQUESTED: Staff is requesting approval to allow the City Manager  
  to execute the Highland Community Memorandum of Understanding.” 



4 
 

  Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the Highland Community  
  Memorandum of Understanding. Councilmember Stille seconded the motion,  
  which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
 B. Approval of Development Agreement to Support the Renovation and Reuse  
  of 141/143 W. Main Street 
  Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 
  Mr. Story presented the item to Council as follows: 
  “141/143 West Main is an important structure within the historic blocks of  
  Morgan Square.  It has been vacant since 2006 and prior to that was occupied by  
  finance companies, a pawn shop and law offices.  Since that time, our Economic  
  Development staff has sought to encourage a mixed use renovation and reuse of  
  this 10,000 +/- square foot building. 
 
  Recently 141/143 West Main, LLC, a locally owned corporation purchased the  
  building for the purpose of renovating and restoring the property to being a  
  productive contributor to our downtown.  The lower level will support a full  
  service restaurant, and the upper level and building wing will include 5   
  apartments. The attached development agreement would provide necessary  
  incentives to ensure completion of this undertaking.  We recommend your   
  approval.” 
  Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the item as presented.   
  Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
 C. Update on Procurement of Body Worn Cameras/Tasers 
  Presenters:  Alonzo Thompson, Police Chief 
  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
                        Chief Thompson reviewed with Council that the Police department had already  
                        purchased 20 cameras for its traffic division officers that were being used as a  
                        pilot program. He stated that the 85 additional cameras funded through the  
                        $184,500 U.S. Department of Justice grant recently obtained would allow 105  
                        officers to record and store footage of traffic stops and emergency responses.  
                        Chief Thompson shared that the cameras were good for transparency to show  
                        what officers do. He added that it was an opportunity for learning and identifying  
                        training needs as well. He shared that the 85 cameras would come with 85 Tasers.  
                        He stressed the importance of being involved in the community and having the  
                        officers engage with residents to keep their relationship strong with them. He  
                        added that “Community policing isn’t a program, it’s a philosophy”. 
             Councilmembers commended Chief Thompson for he and his staff’s hard work   
             and dedication in making sure the funding was obtained and the cameras and   
             Tasers were purchased.  
 
 IX.         City Council Updates 
                Councilmember Rice shared that a Town Hall meeting to discuss issues in  
                Spartanburg was being held at 6:30 that evening at Macedonia Missionary Baptist  
                Church. He mentioned that Police Chief Thompson held “Chats with the Chief” at Q- 



5 
 

                Cuts on S. Church St. the previous Friday. He reminded everyone that the Carolina  
                Panthers would begin their training camp at Wofford College on Thursday, July 28 at  
                4:30 p.m. 
                Councilmember Scalisi commented that she thought it was good for everyone for the  
                City’s policemen to have body worn cameras and Tasers so that everyone would be  
                accountable. She stated the importance of the community building relationships with  
                the policemen. 
                Councilmember Henderson Myers shared that she had just returned from the  
                NBC/LEO Summer Summit in Columbus, Ohio. She stated that there were many  
                projects discussed that could happen in Spartanburg. She mentioned a tour of an old   
                elementary school, similar to the former Mary H. Wright building, that has been  
                renovated with city and corporate dollars. She stated that the building now included a  
                food market, a doctor’s office, a café, a mental health office and several non-profits.  
                She also shared that had been elected Chair of the Women Lawyers Division of the  
                National Association of the Bar, and that she was the first South Carolinian to be  
                elected to that position. She said that she would be looking to utilize that position  
                nationally and locally. 
 
   X.         City Council Workshop – Discretionary Grants Allocation (Hospitality Tax) 

Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 
                Mr. Story presented Staff’s recommendations for allocation as a starting point for the  
                discussion.  A lengthy discussion ensued as to allocation of $370,000 in Hospitality  
                Tax funds.  
                Councilmember Stille made a motion to award Spartanburg Juneteenth Inc. $15,000  
                and Hub Bub $62,500. Councilmember Henderson Myers seconded the motion, which  
                carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
               Councilmember Stille made a motion to reduce the Arts Partnership amount by  
               $10,000 and award $35,000 to the Spartanburg Memorial Auditorium. Mayor pro tem  
               Anderson seconded the motion, which carried 6 to 1. Councilmember Brown voted   
               against the motion. 
               Councilmember Henderson Myers made a motion to reduce The Cottonwood Trail  
               amount by $5,000 and award that amount to the Spartanburg Memorial Auditorium.  
               Councilmember Rice seconded the motion. The motion failed with a vote of 2 to 5.                 
               Mayor White, Mayor pro tem Anderson, and Councilmembers Stille, Scalisi and Brown  
               voted against the motion. 
               Councilmember Stille made a motion to approve the revised allocation amounts  
               totaling $370,000. Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion. The motion carried   
               with a vote of 5 to 2. Councilmembers Rice and Henderson Myers voted against the  
               motion. (the final amounts awarded are listed in the chart below) 
                



6 
 

 
 
XI.         Executive Session Pursuant to Section 30-4-70 (a) (5) of the South Carolina Code                
              to Discuss Matters Relating to Encouraging the Location of Two Businesses in the    
              City  
 
              Council may take action on matters discussed in Executive Session after exiting  
              Executive Session. 
              Councilmember Scalisi made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session for the  
              reason stated. Councilmember Henderson Myers seconded the motion, which  
              carried unanimously 7 to 0. Council adjourned to Executive Session at 6:45 p.m. 
 
             Council reconvened at 7:30 p.m. Mayor White stated that discussion was held with no   
             decisions made. 
    
XII.      Adjournment – Councilmember Rice made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  
             Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0.  
             The meeting adjourned at 7:31 p.m. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 



  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII. A  



                             REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager   
 
FROM:   Natalia Rosario, Planning Staff 
      
SUBJECT:  Text Amendment change to the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance to Amend 

Section 515, Downtown Code by Updating and Detailing Signage Standards, the 
Addition of the Zoning Category DT-3: Suburban Zone, Amending Section 515.42 
“Kennedy Street Parking Overlay” to Expand and Apply as a “Sideyard Parking 
Overlay”, Addition of Illustrative Materials, and a Regulation Plan Which Outlines the 
Areas in Which the Form Based Code Applies. 

 
DATE: August 8th, 2016 
 
SUMMARY:  On July 21st, 2016, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed a request 
to amend the text of the City of Spartanburg Downtown Code, submitted by the City of Spartanburg. This 
text amendment is requested in order to update the Downtown Code by clarifying signage standards, 
adding a side yard parking overlay for areas with no on-street parking, adding illustrative materials to assist 
the reader in understanding terms in the code, and the addition of the DT-3: Suburban Zone. All proposed 
changes were reviewed by the Planning Commissioners and the Design Review Board. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposal on July 21, 2016. After consideration of 
the staff report, public comments, and the criteria set forth in the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance 
and Northside Transformation Plan, the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the 
proposed text amendments to the Downtown Code. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  The request was endorsed by the Planning 
Commission on July 21st, 2016 by a vote of 7 to 0.  Staff’s recommendation concerning this application is 
explained in detail in the attached staff report to the Planning Commission. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Minutes from the July 21st, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting and 
Staff Report with attachments are included.  In addition, enclosed is a proposed Ordinance in the event that 
Council approves the rezoning request. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  N/A 



AN ORDINANCE 
 
TO AMEND THE ENTIRE TEXT OF SECTION 515, DOWNTOWN CODE BY 
MODIFYING SIGNAGE STANDARDS, THE ADDITION OF A ZONING CATEGORY, 
DT-3: SUBURBAN ZONE, WHICH IS PRIMARILY RESIDENTIAL, AMENDING 
SUBSECTION 515.4.3 “KENNEDY STREET PARKING OVERLAY” TO EXPAND AND 
APPLY AS A “SIDEYARD PARKING OVERLAY”, ADDITION OF ILLUSTRATIVE 
MATERIALS, AND A REGULATION PLAN WHICH OUTLINES THE AREAS FOR 
WHICH THE FORM BASED CODE APPLIES, OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA; AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg now finds that it is in the public interest to amend 
the entire Section 515, Downtown Code by modifying Signage Standards, the addition of a 
Zoning Category, DT-3: Suburban Zone, which is primarily residential, amending Subsection 
515.4.3 “Kennedy Street Parking Overlay” to expand and apply as a “Sideyard Parking 
Overlay”, addition of illustrative materials, and a Regulation Plan which outlines the areas for 
which the Form Based Code applies; and  
 
 WHEREAS, this text amendment change would be compatible with surrounding land 
uses and neighborhood character, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
welfare, and further, would be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2016, at which 
time a presentation was made by staff and an opportunity was given for the public to comment 
on the text amendment change; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after consideration of the requirements set forth 
in Section 605 of the Zoning Ordinance, subsequently voted at that meeting to recommend to 
City Council that the proposed text amendment be approved as submitted by staff. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
 Section 1. Amendment.  That the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance, be, and the 
same hereby amended as follows in Attachment A. 
 
 Section 2. Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is 
for any reason invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provisions, and such holding shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 

 
 
 
 

(continued) 
 
Section 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the City 

Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina. 



 
 DONE AND RATIFIED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2016. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Junie L. White, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (First Reading) 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (Second Reading) 
 
  
 















  
 

 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

VII. B  



                                    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager   
 
FROM:   Natalia Rosario, Planning Staff 
      
SUBJECT:  Text Amendment change to the City of Spartanburg Historic District Design 

Guidelines for the Beaumont Village Local Historic District and the Hampton Heights 
Local Historic District to provide guidelines for the consideration of solar panels in 
Historic Districts. 

 
DATE: August 8th, 2016 
 
SUMMARY:  On June 9th, after workshops in September 2015 and May 2016, the City of Spartanburg 
Historic Architecture Review Board (HARB) reviewed example guidelines regarding solar panel 
installations in Historic Districts, including the National Alliance of Preservation Commissions (NAPC) 
Sample Guidelines for Solar Systems in Historic Districts as proposed by the City Historic Preservation 
Consultant.  
 
The HARB has acknowledged the desire of residents in these Historic Districts to install solar power panels 
and the lack of avenues for the HARB and City Staff to consider their approval and installation as minor or 
major works. In addition, there are currently no guidelines to determine when and how such an installation 
could be suitable, and the Beaumont Historic District Guidelines expressly forbids solar panels in any form 
or placement. 
 
The Historic Architecture Review Board held a public hearing on the proposal on June 9th, 2016. After 
consideration of the staff materials, public comments, and the criteria set forth in the City of Spartanburg 
Zoning Ordinance the Historic Architecture Review Board voted to recommend a text amendment to the 
Historic Guidelines by adopting the NAPC Sample Guidelines for Solar Systems in Historic Districts. The 
Board also recommended cases of solar panel installations that can be seen from the public right-of-way be 
considered by the HARB as a major work, and solar panel installations that cannot be seen from the public 
right-of-way be considered minor works for administrative approval.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  The motion was endorsed by the Historic 
Architecture Review Board on June 9th, 2016 by a vote of 5 to 0.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Minutes from the September 10th, 2015, May 12th, 2016, and June 9th, 
2016 Historic Architecture Review Board Meeting and Staff Report with attachments are included.  In 
addition, enclosed is a proposed Ordinance in the event that Council approves the rezoning request. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  N/A 



AN ORDINANCE  
 

ACCEPTING THE PROPOSED ADDITION TO THE DESIGN 
GUIDELINES FOR THE BEAUMONT VILLAGE LOCAL HISTORIC 
DISTRICT AND THE HAMPTON HEIGHTS LOCAL HISTORIC 
DISTRICT TO PROVIDE GUIDELINES FOR THE CONSIDERATION 
OF SOLAR PANELS IN HISTORIC DISTRICTS. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, City Council has previously provided for two historic districts, Hampton Heights 
Local Historic District and Beaumont Village Local Historic District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, with the creation of these Historic Districts, Council approved Guidelines for each 
Historic District upon recommendation and approval by the Board of Architectural Design and Historic 
Review (HARB); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the National Alliance of Preservation Commissions has promulgated guidelines for 
solar systems in historic districts.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA, IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED: 
 

Section 1.  The Design Guidelines for Hampton Heights Local Historic District and those for 
Beaumont Village Local Historic District are amended to add the following guidelines regarding 
consideration of solar panels and systems. 

 
GUIDELINES FOR SOLAR PANELS/SOLAR SYSTEMS 

FOR LOCALLY DESIGNED HISTORIC DISTRICTS: 
 

I. In accordance with the Zoning Ordinance, Section 510.2, Historic Preservation 
Guidelines definition of Minor Works: If the solar panels or solar systems are 
located behind the house or on the rear slope of the roof and not visible from the 
public right-of-way, it is considered a minor work and can be approved by Planning 
Administration. 
 

II. In accordance with the Zoning Ordinance, Section 510.2, Historic Preservation 
Guidelines definition of Exterior Architectural Appearance:  If the solar panels or 
solar systems are visible from the public right-of-way, the matter must go before 
HARB for consideration. 

 
III. NOT RECOMMENDED FOR ANY REASON: 

 
 Removal of historic roofing materials during the installation of solar panels. 

 
 Removing or otherwise altering historic roof configuration – dormers, 

chimneys or other features – to add solar systems. 
 

 Any other installation procedure that will cause irreversible changes to 
historic features or materials. 



2 
 
  

 When considering retrofitting measures, historic building owners should 
keep in mind that there are no permanent solutions.  One can only meet the 
standards being applied today with today’s materials and techniques.  In the 
future, it is likely that the standards and the technologies will change and a 
whole new retrofitting plan may be necessary.  Thus, owners of historic 
buildings should limit retrofitting measures to those that achieve reasonable 
energy savings, at reasonable costs, with the least intrusion or impact on the 
character of the building. 

 
IV. When planning the installation of solar panels, the overall objective is to preserve 

character-defining features and historic fabric while accommodating the need for 
solar access to the greatest extent possible.  All solar panel installations must be 
considered on a case by case basis recognizing that the best option will depend on 
the characteristics of the property under consideration.  Some guidelines apply to 
virtually all installation options and are repeated in each section.  All solar panel 
installations should conform to the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 
Rehabilitation: 
 
 Standard Two: The historic character of a property shall be retained and 

preserved.  The removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces 
that characterize a property shall be avoided. 
 

 Standard Nine: New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction 
shall not destroy historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work 
shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible with the massing, 
size, scale and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the 
property and its environment. 

 



4 
 
  

 
 Freestanding.  Freestanding PV panels or freestanding arrays allow the benefits 

of renewable solar power without disrupting the roofline or altering the house.  
They are placed away from the residence and connected through an underground 
wiring.  When a roof may be blocked by trees or not receiving direct sunlight, 
the mobility of a freestanding panel allows the ability to move into optimal 
sunlight areas that may change seasonally. 

 
 

VI. ELEVATIONS: 

   
 Primary Elevations.   

For most properties, locating solar panels on the primary façade is the least 
desirable option because it will have the greatest adverse effect on the 
property’s character defining features.  All other options should be thoroughly 
explored. 
 

- Utilization of low-profile solar panels is recommended.  Solar shingles 
laminates, glazing, or similar materials should not replace original or 
historic materials.  Use of solar systems in windows or on walls, siding, 
and shutters should be avoided. 
 



3 
 
  

 
V. TYPES OF SYSTEMS: 

 
 Photovoltaic.  A photovoltaic system (or PV system) is a system which uses one 

or more solar panels to convert sunlight into electricity.  It consists of multiple 
components, including the photovoltaic modules, mechanical and electrical 
connections and mountings and means of regulating and/or modifying the 
electrical output. 

   
 Solar Shingles.  Solar shingles, also called photovoltaic shingles, are solar cells 

designed to look like conventional asphalt shingles.  There are several varieties 
of solar shingles, including shingle-sized solid panels that take the place of a 
number of conventional shingles in a strip, semi-rigid designs containing several 
silicon solar cells that are sized more like conventional shingles, and newer 
systems using various thin film solar cell technologies that match conventional 
shingles both in size and flexibility. 



4 
 
  

 
 Freestanding.  Freestanding PV panels or freestanding arrays allow the benefits 

of renewable solar power without disrupting the roofline or altering the house.  
They are placed away from the residence and connected through an underground 
wiring.  When a roof may be blocked by trees or not receiving direct sunlight, 
the mobility of a freestanding panel allows the ability to move into optimal 
sunlight areas that may change seasonally. 

 
 

VI. ELEVATIONS: 

   
 Primary Elevations.   

For most properties, locating solar panels on the primary façade is the least 
desirable option because it will have the greatest adverse effect on the 
property’s character defining features.  All other options should be thoroughly 
explored. 
 

- Utilization of low-profile solar panels is recommended.  Solar shingles 
laminates, glazing, or similar materials should not replace original or 
historic materials.  Use of solar systems in windows or on walls, siding, 
and shutters should be avoided. 
 



5 
 
  

- Panels should be installed flat and not alter the slope of the roof.  
Installation of panels must be reversible and not damage the historic 
integrity of the resource and district. 

 
- Solar panels should be positioned behind existing architectural features 

such as parapets, dormers, and chimneys to limit their visibility. 
 

- Use solar panels and mounting systems that are compatible in color to 
established roof materials.  Mechanical equipment associated with the 
photovoltaic system should be treated to be as unobtrusive as possible. 

 
 Secondary Elevations. 

 
- Solar panels should be installed on rear slopes or other locations not 

easily visible from the public right-of-way.  Panels should be installed 
flat and not alter the slope of the roof.  Installation of panels must be 
reversible and not damage the historic integrity of the resource and 
district. 
 

- Flat roof structures should have solar panels set back from the roof edge 
to minimize visibility.  Pitch and elevation should be adjusted to reduce 
visibility from public right-of-way. 

 
- Solar panels should be positioned behind existing architectural features 

such as parapets, dormers, and chimneys to limit their visibility. 
 

- Use solar panels and mounting systems that are compatible in color to 
established roof materials.  Mechanical equipment associated with the 
solar panel system should be painted or treated to be as unobtrusive as 
possible. 

 
- Use of solar systems in non-historic windows or on walls, siding, or 

shutters should be installed as to limit visibility from the public right-of-
way. 

 
 



6 
 
  

VII. ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND NEW CONSTRUCTION:   
 
 Historic Accessory Structures. 

 
- Solar panels should be installed on rear slopes or other locations not 

highly visible from the public right-of-way.  Panels should be installed 
flat and not alter the slope of the roof.  Installation of panels must be 
reversible and not damage the historic integrity of the resource and 
district. 
 

- Flat roof structures should have solar panel installations set back from 
the roof edge to minimize visibility.  Pitch and elevation should be 
adjusted to reduce visibility from the public right-of-way. 

 
- Solar panel installations should be positioned behind existing 

architectural features such as parapets, dormers, and chimneys to limit 
their visibility. 

 
- Use solar panels and mounting systems that are compatible in color to 

the property’s roof materials.  Mechanical equipment associated with the 
photovoltaic system should be as unobtrusive as possible. 

 
- Use of solar systems in non-historic windows or on walls, siding and 

shutters should be installed as to limit visibility from the public right-of-
way. 

 



7 
 
  

 Freestanding or Detached. 
 

 
- Freestanding or detached on-site solar panels should be installed in 

locations that minimize visibility from the public right-of-way.  These 
systems should be screened from the public right-of-way with materials 
elsewhere in the district such as fencing or vegetation of suitable scale 
for the district and setting. 
 

- Placement and design should not detract from the historic character of 
the site or destroy historic landscape materials. 

 
- Consideration to the visibility of solar panels from neighboring 

properties should be taken, without infringing upon the required solar 
access. 

 
 New Construction On-Site. 

 
- Solar panels should be integrated into the initial design of new 

construction or infill projects, when possible, to assure cohesion of 
design within a historic context. 
 

- Solar panels should be installed on rear slopes or other locations not 
highly visible from the public right-of-way whenever possible.  Panels 
should be installed flat and not alter the slope of the roof. 

 
- Flat roof structures should have solar panels set back from the roof edge 

to minimize visibility.  Pitch and elevation should be adjusted to reduce 
visibility from the public right-of-way. 

 
- Use solar panels and mounting systems that are compatible in color to 

established roof materials.  Mechanical equipment associated with the 
solar panel system should be treated to be as unobtrusive as possible. 

 
- Use of solar systems in windows or on walls, siding, or shutters should 



8 
 
  

be installed with limited visibility from the public right-of-way. 
 
 
 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its enactment. 
 
DONE AND RATIFIED this ____ day of _________________, 2016. 
 
    
      __________________________________________  
      MAYOR 
 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
Date of First Reading: ________________ 
 
Date of Second Reading: ______________  
 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 





































  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

VII. C  



  REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager   
 
FROM:   Natalia Rosario, Planning Staff 
      
SUBJECT:  Rezoning of the Northside Neighborhood from B-3: General Business District, B-1: 

Neighborhood Shopping District, R-6: General Residential District, R-8: General 
Residential District, LOD: Limited Office District, & I-1: Light Industrial district to 
the zoning categories of DT-5: Urban Center, DT-4: General Urban Zone, and the 
newly proposed DT-3: Suburban Zone. City of Spartanburg, Agent. 

 
DATE: August 8th, 2016 
 
SUMMARY:  On July 21st, 2016, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed a 
rezoning request submitted by the City of Spartanburg to rezone the Northside Neighborhood, located 
between North Church Street and continuing west until the railroad tracks, and extending to the northern 
City limit line. This rezoning is requested in order to match the zoning standards in this area to the design 
and development standards proposed in the Northside Transformation Plan (2014).  
 
The Northside Transformation Plan calls for design standards for the  neighborhood that will encourage 
redevelopment that is flexible and has a range of different uses, including commercial, residential, office, 
and institutional. As the Northside Initiative moves forward, the City would propose a zone change to 
match the envisioned development areas found in Chapter 6, Proposed Northside Development (Northside 
Transformation Plan, pp. 221-223). The proposed zoning standards can be found in the City of Spartanburg 
Downtown Code, which is also proposed for amendment in order to facilitate the creation of the new 
zoning category, DT-3: Suburban Zone, specifically applied to portions of the Northside neighborhood. 
This category allows for the preservation of the traditional residential neighborhood patterns found in the 
area while allowing for increased flexibility in design of housing. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposal on July 21st, 2016. After consideration of 
the staff report, public comments, and the criteria set forth in the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance 
and Northside Transformation Plan, the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval to rezone the 
area from B-1, B-3, R-6, R-8, LOD, & I-1 to DT-5, DT-4, and DT-3. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  The request was endorsed by the Planning 
Commission on July 21st, 2016 by a vote of 7 to 0.  Staff’s recommendation concerning this application is 
explained in detail in the attached staff report to the Planning Commission. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Minutes from the July 21st, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting and 
Staff Report with attachments are included.  In addition, enclosed is a proposed Ordinance in the event that 
Council approves the rezoning request. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  N/A 



AN ORDINANCE 
 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA 
ZONING ORDINANCE AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE ELEMENT, BY 
AMENDING SECTION 206, CHANGES TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF THE 
NORTHSIDE NEIGHBORHOOD, LOCATED BETWEEN NORTH CHURCH STREET 
AND CONTINUING WEST UNTIL THE RAILROAD TRACKS, AND EXTENDING 
UNTIL THE NORTHERN CITY LIMIT LINE THAT ARE CURRENTLY ZONED B-3; 
B-1; R-6; R-8; LOD & I-1 , WITH LAND USE DESIGNATIONS OF GENERAL 
BUSINESS DISTRICT, NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING DISTRICT; GENERAL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRIST; LIMITED OFFICE DISTRICT AND LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT TO ZONES DT-5; DT-4; AND DT-3, WITH LAND USE DESIGNATIONS OF 
URBAN CENTER DISTRICT; GENERAL URBAN DISTRICT; AND SUBURBAN 
ZONE; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg now finds that, upon further review, it is in the 
public interest that the land use designation for the parcels identified on the Official Zoning Map 
of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, dated August 6, 1973, as amended, by changes to the 
District Boundaries of the Northside Neighborhood, located between North Church Street and 
continuing west until the railroad tracks, and extending until the northern city limit line that are 
currently zoned B-3;  B-1; R-6; R-8; LOD, and I-1, to zones DT-5, Urban Center District; DT-4, 
General Urban District; and DT-3, Suburban Zone, as shown on the proposed Northside 
Rezoning Map; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this zoning change would be compatible with surrounding land uses and 
neighborhood character, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare, and, 
further, would be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2016, at which 
time a presentation was made by staff and an opportunity was given for the public to comment on 
the rezoning request; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after consideration of the staff report, public 
comments, and the criteria set forth in Section 605 of the Zoning Ordinance, subsequently voted 
at that meeting to recommend to City Council that the rezoning request be approved as 
recommended by City Staff. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment.  That the official zoning map of the City of Spartanburg, as referenced 
by Section 206 of the Zoning Ordinance, be, and the same hereby amended as follows: 
 

 All lots in the Northside Neighborhood, located between North Church Street and 
continuing west until the railroad tracks, and extending until the northern city limit line 
shall now be designated as Zones DT-5, Urban Center District; DT-4, General Urban 
District; and DT-3, Suburban Zone, as referenced above and shown on the proposed 
Northside Rezoning Map; and 

 



Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 
be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the City 
Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina. 
 
DONE AND RATIFIED THIS ____________ DAY OF _________________, 2016. 
 
                                                                                                   __________________________ 

                                                                                                   Junie L. White, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
 
___/___/___ 1st Reading 
 
___/___/___ 2nd Reading 
 
 
  
 







































































  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

VIII. A  



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 

TO:   Ed Memmott, City Manager     
 
FROM:  Mitch Kennedy, Community Services Director 
      
SUBJECT: Donation of Property on Pine Street 
 
DATE:  August 3, 2016  
   
 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
Property located on Pine Street (Tax Map Parcel 7-17-01-036.00) consisting of 2.3 ± acres, is owned by 
Spartanburg Real Holdings, LLC, a related entity of The Spartanburg County Foundation that wishes to 
donate the property to the City.  The property is located adjacent to the City’s Rail Trail as shown on the 
attached Parcel Maps from the Spartanburg County Assessor’s Office website. 
 
Staff recommends accepting the donation of the parcel.   
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Approval of Resolution accepting the donation of the property from The Spartanburg County Foundation 
identified as Tax Map Parcel # 7-17-01-036.00. 
 
 
 

BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:   
 
N/A   
 
 



 
A RESOLUTION 

APPROVING DONATION OF 2.3± ACRE TRACT ON PINE STREET 
(TAX MAP PARCEL # 7-17-01-036.00) 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg (the “City”) continues its interest in revitalizing and 
advancing its Parks and Recreation Program and enhancing the Rail Trail Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Spartanburg County Foundation, through its related entity, Spartanburg 
Real Holdings, LLC, has agreed to donate the 2.3± acre tract on Pine Street, Tax Map Parcel # 7-
17-01-036.00 (the “Property”), which is adjacent to the City’s Rail Trail Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the public interest to accept donation of 

Tax Map Parcel # 7-17-01-036.00 from The Spartanburg County Foundation, through its related 
entity, Spartanburg Real Holdings, LLC. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Mayor and Members of City Council 
of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
 Section 1.  To accept the donation of the Property as described herein. 
 
 Section 2.  Spartanburg Real Holdings, LLC shall execute and deliver a deed, in a form 
approved by the City Attorney, to the City conveying the Property described herein. 
 
 Section 3.  This Resolution shall become effective upon the date of enactment. 

 
DONE AND RATIFIED this ______ day of ________________________, 2016. 

 
 
      ___________________________________ 
              MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________            
City Attorney 



Spartanburg County Assessor

Parcel:  7-17-01-036.00  Acres: 2.52

Name: SPARTANBURG REAL HOLDINGS LLC Land Value $17,000.00

Site: PINE ST Improvement Value $0.00

Sale: $$1 on 04-2015 Vacant= Qual=9 Accessory Value $0.00

Mail:

424 E KENNEDY ST

SPARTANBURG, SC 29302

Total Value $17,000.00

The Spartanburg County Assessor's Office makes every effort to produce the most accurate information possible.  No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the
data herein, its use or interpretation. The assessment information is from the last certified taxroll. All data is subject to change before the next certified taxroll. PLEASE

NOTE THAT THE PROPERTY APPRAISER MAPS ARE FOR ASSESSMENT PURPOSES ONLY NEITHER SPARTANBURG COUNTY NOR ITS EMPLOYEES ASSUME
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS ---THIS IS NOT A SURVEY---

Date printed:  08/04/16 : 15:29:59



  
 

 

X. A  



 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager  
 
FROM: Tony McAbee, Building Maintenance Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Replacement of Floor Coverings - Fire Station 1 (City Hall) 
 
DATE: August 3, 2016 
 
BACKGROUND    
 
Staff solicited bids for the removal of existing carpet and vinyl floor tile in the administrative offices of Fire 
Station 1.   
 
The following bids were received:   
 
Hodge Floors (Spartanburg, SC)                $27,000.00 
Young Office Environments (Greenville, SC)  $27,949.36 
Lindin Floors (Spartanburg, SC)                       $30,769.92 
Omar’s Floorcovering (Ridgeville, SC)    $32,351.31      
Nichols Customs Builders (Greenville, SC)      $37,000.00      
Taylor Made Contracting (Camden, SC)           $79,000.00       
  
Staff has reviewed the bids and the qualifications for each of these contractors.  Based on that review, staff has 
determined that, Hodge Floors is the responsive low bidder.   Three (Omar’s, Nichols, and Taylor) bids were 
submitted from MWBE certified contractors.   It is anticipated that it will take 30 days to complete this project.   
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Allow staff to accept the bid from Hodge Floors and authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
Hodge Floors for the completion of the project.  
 

BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
 
$ 27,000 from Building Maintenance Fund.  
 

 
 



  
 

 
 

X. B 








